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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual repert serves the purposes
of both a Trustees' report and a Directors' report and strategic report under company law.

The Multi Academy Trust operates nine primary academies in Wakefield. The pupil numbers as at May 2024
census date are shown below: -

Academy PAN (current) On Roll - not including
nursery (May 24)
Ackton 329 a7
Ash Grove 331 264
Fitzwilliam 210 187
Girnhill 135 118
Gawthorpe 236 205
Grove Lea 210 209
Half Acres 450 368
South Hiendiey 230 185
Towngate 315 270

Structure, governance and management
Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust. The
Trustees of Inspire Partnership Multi Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as Inspire Partnership Multi Academy Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year , and to the date these accounts are approved are included
in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amaount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees' indemnities

The Academy Trust has purchased RPA insurance to protect Trustees from claims arising against negligent
acts, errors or ommissions oceuring whilst on academy trust business. Further details are provided in note12.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Academy Trust is governed by a Board comprising the Charity Trustees of the Academy Trust {the "Board
of Trustees™). The Board of Trustees will have regard to any guidance on the governance of academy trusts. In
accordance with the Memorandum and Aricles of Association, the Members may appoint up lo eleven
Trustees. The Board may appoint Co-opted Trustees without reference to the Members. Recruitment has often
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

laken place using the Academy Ambassadors, a third-parly academy focused recruitment organisation,
Unfortunately, Academy Ambassadors no longer has Government funding and are no longer operaling.
Recruitment as a consequence has become more difficult but we have stil managed to find excelient
applicants. Suitable applicants, having expressed interest, are invited to meet with a panel of Trustees. The
Board then considers the views of the panel and, if suitable, a recommendation is taken to the Members for
their approval. New Trustees are appointed having met the required skill sets (see page 6).

Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

A programme of induction is provided for new Trustees depending on their existing experience and is tailored to
their needs. On appointment. “Governance within the IPMAT", which includes the Scheme of Delegation, is
given out along with the Code of Cenduct. Supporting documentation is alse provided to Trustees Lpon
appointment,

All Trustees complete safeguarding training annually. Further to this, a broad range of training and development
opportunities are available lo support Trustees in developing their skills and knowledge. Trustees are also
encouraged to pursue individual training and development opportunities, in addition to participating in
development activities undertaken by the full Board.

Each year, all Trustees take part in an annual audil, The focus alternates between assessing the work of the
Board and its members or an analysis of individual skills. An analysis of the audit is acted upon annually. All
Trustees are required to complete a register of interests, which is updated on a continuing basis, with relevant
interests disclosed before each Trust Board meeting.

The Trust's Scheme of Delegation is reviewed annually and details how decision-making powers are delegated
between the Members, the Trustees, the CEO, the Local Governance Boards and the Headteachers of the
Academies. The document, "Governance within IPMAT", is also reviewed annually.

The Board of Trustees met four times during 2023-24, The Board has three committees which act in an advice
and scrutiny capacity to the Board to enable informed decisions to be made. These are the Finance Audit and
Resources Committee, the Curriculum and Standards Committee and the Pay Committee. The Local
Governance Boards are also committees of the Trust Board. The Chair of the Trustees and the Local
Governance Board Chairs meel termly to discuss Trust matters and take part in training. As with the Trust
Board members, Local Governance Board members undertake annual assessments.

The Trustees also make a visit 1o one of our nine academies each term. These visits enable Trustees to meet
the Headteacher and Govemnors and to walk round the building during the school day in order o meet pupils
and staff and to gain more knowledge of each Acaderny and the area that it serves.

The CEQ is the accounting officer and undertakes all duties linked o this post and is accountable to the Board,
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Members

Board of Trustees

With the CEO, Deputy CEQ, CFO and COO in attendance

Standards & Curriculum
Committee

Finance Audit & Risk
Committee

Pay

Committee

Local Governance Boards

Ackton Pastures Primary
Academy

Local Governance Board

Ash Grove Primary Academy
Local Governance Board

Fitzwilliam Primary
School

Local Governance
Board

Gawthorpe Community
Academy
Local Governance Board

Girnhill Infants School
Local Governance Board

Grove Lea Primary
Academy
Local Governance
Body

Half Acres Primary Academy
Local Governance Board

South Hiendley Primary School
Local Governance Board

Towngate Primary
Academy
Local Governance
Board
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

As at 31 August 2024 there were 5 Members in post.

As-at 31 August 2024, there were 7 Trustees in post out of a possible maximum of 11, The Board would like to
increase the number to 11 if individuals with the right skills can be found.

The IPMAT Board recognises that the principles and personal atiributes which individuals bring to the Board are
important. All Trustees understand that the Nolan Principles (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability,

openness, honesty and leadership) apply to each one of them. Local Governance Board members also follow
the Molan Principles,

It is also important that those involved in governance at Trust or Academy level should exhibit the 7 C's:

Committed — devoting the required time to the role

Confident — of an independent mind, able to lead and contribute to courageous conversations
Curious — an enquiring mind and analytical appraach

Challenging — providing appropriate challenge to the status quo, not taking information at face value
Collaboralive — prepared to listen and work in partnership with others

LCritical — critical friendship which enables both challenge and support

Creative — able to challenge convention wisdom and be open-minded

As part of the induction process and on-going schedule of evaluation and improvement, the Trustees ara
involved in the following activities which form part of the MAT Board's cycie for continual improvement:

Agreeing and formulating the plans for medium and long-term development of the Trust and how they build
capacity within the Trust and its schools;

Continually evaluating the needs and development challenges for all the schools within the Trust,
irrespective of current performance levels;

Determining how the Trust will contribute to wider system improvement and develop and retain good links
with other MATS, teaching schools and a wide range of stakeholders;

Ensuring thal there is sufficient financial expertise to oversee the Trust's financial operations;

Carrying out financial planning which is integrated ino the Trust's overall strategy for its school(s);

Ensuring the Trust's vision remains deliverable and resilient to operational changes in income, such as
changes in pupil numbers or characteristics or the implications of the introduction of a national funding
formula;

Making sure that there are robust contingency plans in place, with clear triggers for enacting these plans.
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INSPIRE PARTMERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees meets at least three times per year, having one Annual General Meeling. Roles and
responsibilities are as stipulated in the Academy Funding Agreement and Articles of Association. The Trustees'
"Code of Conduct” is signed by each Trustee at the first meeting of the school year. Similarly. there is a Code of
Conduct for Members and Local Governing Board members which has to be signed at the first meeting of the
school year.

A Scheme of Delegation sefs out what decisions are reserved for the Board of Trustees, and those that are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of each Academy, Local Governing
Body, Academy Office Managers, Administrative and other staff,

There are additional Trustees' Committees with their own Terms of Reference and constitution, which are
agreed annually al the first meeting of each academic year.

Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust has resolved to include the functions of an audit committee within that
of the Finance Audit and Risk Committee. The Finance Audit and Risk Commitiee focuses on providing
assurance to the Board of Truslees that all risks are being adequately identified and managed.

The Trustees delegate the day-to-day operation of each Academy to the Senior Leadership Team of that
Academy. The staffing structure, including responsibilities, is reviewed on an annual basis.

The Trustees appointed an internal auditor to perform a supplementary programme of work throughout the year.

The Chief Executive Officer is the Trusts Accounting Officer.
Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Template employment contracts are reviewed annually with the assistance of a third-party HR
provider/femployment law specialist. The Trust's inhouse HR team manage the contract issue process and the
remuneration of the academy's key management personal is determined by the job evaluation of these
contracts. All employees have a detailed job specification which sets out the level of management responsibility
of senior staff members and the level of pay is determined by reference to the Teachers terms and conditions
and the National Joint Council Pay scales depending on whether the key management personne| are classed as
a 'Teacher' or ‘'member of support staff’, The grades and pay scales are determined by this independent review
of the contract. Pay and remuneration of the academies key personnel is bench marked against other key
management personnel in other Trusts to ensure it is both competilive and within parameters. Performance
management targets are set for all staff annually and targets are reviewed throughout the year, this helps staff
to focus on the needs of the Trust and provides clear goals for achievement.

Trade union facility time
The Academy Trust is a member of the Wakefield System Leaders Network and pays into the Local Authority

Facilities Time agreement at a cost of £13,132 for the year ending 31 August 2024, The Academy Trust has
operated flexibly to ensure all siaff have access to Union representation.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Employees have been consulted on issues of concern to them by means of regular consultative committee and
staff meetings and have been kept informed on specific matters directly by managemaent.

The Academy Trust has implemented & number of detailed policies in relation to all aspects of personnel
matters including:

Equal opportunities palicy
Volunteers' policy

Health & safety policy

Staff Code of Conduct palicy

The Academy Trust has long-established fair employment practices in the recruitment, selection, retention and
training of disabled staff.

Full details of these policies are available from the Academy Trust's offices.
Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy trust

The Academy Trust engages reguiarly with suppliers, customers and other relevant stakeholders such as
beneficiaries, funders and the wider community. Trustees and governors have a crucial role to play in
connecling the academies with the wider communily of business and other professionals in order to enhance
the education and career aspirations of pupils.

Objectives and activities

Objectives, strategies and activities

The purpose of the Academy Trust is to maintain good and outstanding schools and ensure the rapid
improvement of schools which need support now (and in the future) and to act as a vehicle for enabling the
sharing of best practice and economies of scale to be achieved across the group of academies.

Vision

Building a Community of Schools — Inspiring Excellence in Everyone
s |nspiring Excellence

= |nspiring Partnerships

s Inspiring Individuality

= Inspiring Futures

Our Values:

* Respect

» Responsibility
* Recognition

* Resilience

As a Trust, the way we wish to grow is fo develop:

Strong and capable leaders;

Peopie who will excel in providing outstanding education;

Build trusl and respect across our academies;

Build long term relationships in which there is an opportunity for continuous improvement.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

The principles by which we will manage the organisation:

Openness to build trust, be transparent, sharpen accountability and drive improvement;

Operate a financial efficient low-cost organisation;

Operate an effective & strong governance framework;

Ensure tight control of our resources to achieve economies, efficiencies and effectiveness across our
operations.

Specific actions, allocated resources, monitoring and milestones were provided for each of the priority areas
and these were evaluated and reviewed to assess the plans success throughout the year.

Public benefit

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have considered the Charity Commission’s
general guidanice on public benefit published by the Charity Commission website in exercising their powers or
duties.

The Trustees are aware of the guidance and take it into account when making a decision to which the guidance
is relevant. If they have decided to depart from the guidance, they have good reasons for doing so.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REFORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

Strategic report

Dutcomes for children and pupils across the Trust

Early years
2023 2024 2024 compared to
tha natlonal
average
All children T0% T0% +3%
Children receiving 5% 54% +2%
the pupll premium

Almosl identical to last year and just above the national average. Boys and disadvantaged pupils outcomes improved from the year before.

Phonics:
2023 2024 2024 compared to the
national average
All Y1 pupils Ba% B3% +4%
¥1 pupils receiving the T1% GA%Y +1%
pupll premium

This continues to be above the national average.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

Key stage 1
20233 2024 2024 compared to the
national average

Reading, writing and maths expected standard 61% 82% +3%

Roading, writing and maths greater depih standard % % +1%

Reading, writing and maths for puplis recelving the 45% 53% +12%

pupll premium

Reading expected standard Ti1% Ta% +E%

Writing expacied standard 63% BE% +6%

Mathz axpacted standard 1% Ta% +d%

Orvarall, alf subjocts (and combinad) have improved and are abave the national avorage. There has bean A slight reduction 0 ihe proporion
giining the greater depth standard. Reading and mathemalica outcomes a1 74% and 73% respectively ara hatter Ihan last year and abova
the: ralicnal average.

Kay stage 2
2023 2024 2024 compared to the
national average

Reading, writing and maths expected standard 5d% 1% 0%

Reading, writing and maths higher standard % 1% +3%

Reading, writing and maths for pupils recelving the 39% A A%

pupll pramium

m:lmg_ﬁpmlﬂl standard 69% T1% 2%

Writing expected standard B9% Td% +3%

Maths expected standard &% Ta% A%

Overall aulcomes have improved and nearly hail of pupils got full marks, much above the 36% nationally. Disadvaniaged pLapds mproved
significanty from last yaar, akhough they se sl balow tha national avarage. Also, there is very litlle gap between boys and girts hara and
EAL pupils parfoim wel,
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

Achievements and performance
Inspeactions

Two schools were inspected over the course of last academic year. Both of these were ungraded inspections
and therefore both schools maintained their current grades: one good and one outstanding.

Featherstone Girnhill Infant School was praised for the strong learning behaviours that are established in the
early years. Leaders were found to have high expectations and the school motto of 'every child matters, every
moment counts’ was understood well by staff, The trust curriculum was commended for being clearly planned
from early years to Year 2. Phonics was found to be a strength and while writing was improving, it was an area
where pupils could have more practice, The wider offer for pupils fo develop character was found to be a
strength. Leaders at all levels were found to be reflective and clear on their drive for improvement.

Grove Lea Primary School was praised for its excellent reading and mathematics provision which provided
strong foundations for pupils. Pupils with SEND were found to achieve particularly well. Reading was seen as a
priority across the school, Some improvements were suggested in assessing pupils across the curriculum,

Trust priorities

1. To ensure positive cutcomes for SEND pupils through further refinement of our resources and
practice

= Early identification processes are in place and used consistently across the Trust.

= More pupils with an EHC plan achieved the combined expected standard this year than last (14% compared
to 0%).

= Slightly less pupils with SEN support achieved the combined expected standard (25% compared to 27%)

2. To further develop our provision for English
= Focusing on: developing high quality cracy, further development of writing provision & forensic
reading.
After further evaluation, forensic reading was not brought in across the Trusl.
Further work with the English hub in phenics supported the standard at the end of Year 1 to be maintained
above the national average.
Clearer teaching sequences in reading were introduced across the Trust,
More pupils, 2%, across the Trust achieved the expected standard in KS2 reading compared to last year.
More pupils, 5%, across the Trusl achieved the expected standard in KS2 writing compared to last year.
Both reading and writing were above the national average.

3. To further develop a high- quality Trust model for curriculum with a focus on progression and
significant people.

« There is a trust curriculum in place for reading, mathematics, history, geography, music and languages that
is being used in the vast majority of schools.
This curriculum has been noted and praised in both Ofsted inspections this year.
Each subject has a full set of resources for teachers to use that has reduced their workload.

« Reading and writing is integrated into the curriculum.

« Most teachers, more than 70%, are confident or very confident to teach the curriculum.

4. To continue to develop curriculum offer to ensure we have subject specific assessments &
writingcriteria in place
Subject knowledge of subject leaders has been developed through the use of networks.
Assessment systems have been integrated into curriculum resources.

= Reading and writing oppertunities are included throughout the curriculum.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES® REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Achievements and performance (continued)

To improve attendance across the Trust especially those pupils classed as persistent absentee
Overall attendance improved from 92.8% to 93.1% from 2022/23 to 2023/24.

Attendance for disadvantaged pupils remained at 90.4%.

Altendance for pupils with SEND improved slightly from 88.5% to 89.9%, although this is still low.

PA increased slightly from 18.1% to 18.3%.

PA for disadvantaged pupils fell from 31.4% lo 28.9%.

a & & ® ® gn

School Improvement
There is a clear and proportionate school improvement offer for all schools which involves regular visits from
both the CEO and DCEO and additional support from seconded leaders from other schools.

Training and development

There is a comprehensive training offer across the Trust thal enables staff at all points o access development
to support their own career pathway. This is closely linked lo the succession plan across the Trust so thal staff
are trained to be ready for their next role.

Strategic planning

There is a long-term five-year plan to move the Trust from good to GREAT.

The focus of GREAT is:

~  Grow the Trust. Not just in size but in influence and its relationships with the education sector as a whole.

~ Risk reduction. Ensure that processes and systems alert leaders to possible risks in areas including
finance, standards and resources. Then leaders should be skilled in eliminaling or at least mitigating these
risks.

—  Early excellence. The Trust will be a centre of excellence for the provision in the early years and outcomes
will reflect this.

_ Attainment al every stage. Pupils will be moving through the curriculum and achieving high standards
throughout so that they are ready for their next educational steps.

~ Training and development. Staff will be supported and trained at every stage and our training will be
enabling this.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectalion that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Furlher details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.

Promoting the success of the company

The Trustees of the Academy Trust act to promote the success of the charitable company to achieve its
charitable purposes. In doing so they have regard (amongst other matters) to:

I The likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

ii. The interests of the Academy Trust's employees;

i. The need to foster the academy trust's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others:

iv. The impact of the Academy Trust's operations on the community and environment;

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

vi. The need to act fairly between members of the academy trust.

=
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Achievements and performance (continued)

Financial review

The majorily of each Academy Trust's income is obtained from the Education Funding Agency in the form of the
General Annual Grant (GAG). Each Academy also receives other central government grants such as the Pupil
Premium, PE Sports grants and Universal Infant Free School Meal grants. Early Years funding and Special
Educational Needs top up funding is received directly from Wakefield District Council. In accordance with SORP
(Statement of Recommended Practlice) these lines are shown as restricted funding. Each Academy also
receives unrestricted funds, which includes:

* Consultancy support services and training:
* |ncome from hire of the facilities:
» Breakfast and afterschoal clubs

During the year ended 31 August 2024, recurrent grant funding from DIE/ESFA together with other incoming
resources was in exess of total expenditure of £14,680,000 (2023: £14,082,000). The excess of income over
expenditure for the year (before transfers, pension liabilities and actuarial gains, and excluding fixed asset
funds) was E242,000 (2023: £359,000).

All of the expenditure shown in the Statemant of Financlal Activities is in furtherance of the Academy Trust's
objectives.

The in-year surplus, excluding the pension was £260,000 (2023: £177,000).

At 31 August 2024 net book value of fixed assets was £19.439 000 (2023: £19,181,000) and movements in
tangible fixed assets are shown in note 14 to the Financial Statements. The assets were used exclusively for
providing education and the associated support services to the students of the Academy Trust,

The provisions of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 have been applied in full in respect of LGPS pension
scheme, resulting in an asset of Enil recognised on the Balance Sheet,

The Academy Trust held fund balances as at 31 August 2024 of £20,990,000 (2023: £20,730,000). This

comprises the asset pension reserve of Enil, restricted fixed asset funds of £19,441,000, restricted income
funds of £71,000 and unrestricted funds of £1,478,000.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Reserves policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Academy Trust on an ongoeing basis, with reference o a five-year
forecast, sensitivity analysis and updates throughout the year. This review encompasses the nature of income
and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves, Al the year
end, the Academy Trust held £1,550,000 of restricted and unrestricted general fund reserves, unrestricted
reserves of £1,478,000 (2023 : £1,165,000), and restricted reserves of £71,000 (2023 £693,000). Reserves
are held to ensure that the Academy Trust has sufficient resources to continue to advance the education of
pupils, including incurring the necessary capital expenditure to provide high quality learning environments. The
Trustees would like to maintain minimum reserves of restricted and unrestricted funds (not including fixed
assets and pension reserve) of the equivalent of 1 months' staffing costs for the Academy Trust. Additional
reserves are retained by the Acadmy Trust to cover future capital projects and to mitigate against unforeseen
expenditure,

A Financial Management Policy and Procedures document has been adopted and a range of accounting
policies have also been adopted.

The Trustees consider it prudent that the Academy Trust maintains sufficient reserves to meel unexpected
expenditure, but a formal target level of reserves has not yet been calculated. The amount of total funds held at
the balarce sheet date were £20,990,000. The amount of restricted funds not available for general purposes of
the Academy Trust at 31st August were £71,000.

The value of free reserves (unrestricted funds) held at the balance sheet date were £1,478,000.

Investment policy

The funds of each Academy and the Trust itself are held in a current account and a high interest investment
account with instant access, which are low risk investmenis.

The Board of Trustees will only invest to further their charitable aims, but they will ensure that investment risk is
properly managed. When considering making an investment the board will: -

s  Act within their powers to invest as set out in their articles of association

« Have an investment policy to manage, control and track their financial exposure, and ensure value for
money
Exercise care and skill in all investment decisions, taking advice as appropriate from a professional adviser
Ensure that exposure to investment products is tightly controlled so that security of funds takes precedence
over revenue maximisation

« Ensure that all investment decisions are in the best interests of the Trust and command broad public
support

+ Review the Trust's investments and investment policy regularly

The board will follow the Charity Commission's guidance: CC14 Charities and investment matters: A guide for

Trustees. The ESFA's prior approval must be obtained for investment transaclions which are novel andfor
contentious.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Principal risks and uncertainties

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy Trust has been established as part of
the approach lo the organisational strategic management of risk within the Academy. Financial rigks are
assessed annually and control measures implemented, the details are set out in a Risk Register.

The Academy Trust has underaken a Risk Register Review and maintains a Risk Register covering the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy Trust. These are categorised as strategic, operational,
financial and compliance. The risk register is reviewed regularly,

The main areas of risk identified in the latest Academny Trust risk assezsment are: -
» Having inadequate succession planning in place for key roles: and
= Unfunded unforeseen increases to pay and inflation having a significant negative impact on future budgets.

To mitigate against these risks, the Academy Trust has taken the following action: -

» Investment in an in-house Educational Psychologist, Education Welfare Officer and Speech and Language
Tuter to focus on pupil's mental health development and support. Investment in physical education
instructors and equipment to improve physical and mental health:

* Investment in central team to provide additional capacily around leadership and central services.
Buccession plan reviewed and training in place for aspiring leaders: and

* All known pay awards are now factored into the latest forecast which is reviewed monthly. Scenario
modelling is undertaken, Inflation increased for energy within latest scenario,

The Academy Trusl's dealings with financial instruments are limited to bank accounts, creditors and debtors,
This limitation serves to minimise credit and liquidity risks when this is combined with the nature of the Academy

Trust's debtors (being principally government bodies and other schools) and therefore the risk to cash flow is
also minimal,

Fundraising

The Academy Trust adds 1o its grant funding by undertaking fund-raising activities where possible. These
include utilising the Academy Trusl and school leaders to deliver training and development. Trust leaders
generate additional income through OFSTED inspections and NPQ facilitation.

In addition, in 2024/25, the Academy Trust successfully applied for a number of small grants for specific

projects, including ICT equipment and outdoor equipment, The Academy Trust did not engage the services of
any professional fundraisers for the 2023/24 financial year,
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The academy trust's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

2024 2023
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 1,950,443 1,953,290
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh}:
Gas 1,369,882 1,376,319
Electricity 556,997 551,520
Transport fuel 23,564 25450
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Gas consumplion 251 252
Total scope 1 251 252
Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Purchased electricity 115 114
) |
Scope 3 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Business travel in employee-owned or rental vehicles B T
e —— T
Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent): 72 ar3
_——
Intensity ratio:
Tonnes of COZ equivalent per pupil 016 0.18

The academy trust has followed and used the following quantification and reporting methodologies:

. the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines;
. the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard; and
. the 2022 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

The chosen intensity ralio is total gross emissions in tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil, the recommended

ratio for the sector.

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2023 UK Government's Conversion Factors for

Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric lonnes CO2e per pupil, the

recommended ratio for the seclor.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued)

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

The Academy Trust confinues to review energy efficient solutions to all building projects and refurbishments,
These types of solutions have already been considered in previous projects such as the installation of energy
efficient lighting in our academies using SEEF funding and replacing roofs, boilers and heating infrastructure
with CIF funding,

The Academy Trust has engaged in design proposals to support their journey to decarbonisation. An
assessment of each building's current energy usage as well as the findings of on-site survey will be used to
inform the next steps for energy efficiency projects.

The Academy Trust notes that the highest consumption of energy is through gas. This is mainly used for
heating. The Trust is considering its energy strategy in relation to heating as part of its estate’s development
planning.

There is a suslained usage of video conferencing technologies that has reduced the need for travel to
conferences and between sites,

A programme of energy reduction is taking place across all Academies.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Plans for future periods

The Trustees have reviewed performance against the strategic objectives within the Trust Development Plan.
The Trust has clear strategic aims built on our mission and core values. The new five-year Strategic
Development Plan covering the period September 2024 to August 2029 sels out the following objectives to
ensure that as a Trust, the public, parents and stakeholders have confidence in this approach,

Strategic Objectives

Inspire Partnership Multi Academy Trust has identified five key stralegic business objectives which will steer our
growth and development aver the next five years. These are to move the Trust from good to 'GREAT' with
GREAT meaning Growth, Risk reduction, Early excellence, Attainment at every stage and Training and
Development,

Growth: The Trust intends to grow its size and influence. This will invelve developing the age range of the Trust
to start taking children from two years old and also to develop resourced provision for pupils with SEND.
Additionally, through work with local autherities and other agencies we will be able to offer other provision for
local need. The Trust will also build partnerships with other schools some of whom will join the Trust, taking the
number of learmers over 3000,

Risk reduction: The Trust will ensure financial security through keeping stafl costs in line with infended
benchmarks and maintaining reserves at a similar level to currently, Enhanced QA systems will mean that any
schools al risk of underperformance will be identified quickly and systems put in place to rapidly respond.

Early excellence: The future success of Trust children is heavily influenced by their early success. Therefore
there will be a significant investment in all early years settings being excellent and this being an area of
exceptionality for the Trust. Staff will be brought in early and trained to a high standard to work in high-quality
environments,

Altainment at every slage: Building on the success of the early years will be an approach to celebrate and
develop the entire breadih of the primary curriculum. This will mean that all pupils, especially those with SEND
or who are disadvantaged, achieve strong outcomes in all subjects, especially English and the arts which will be
major foci for the Trust.

Training and development: The Trust will Invest in high-guality training for all staff at all slages of their career,
This will begin with the very best offer for ECTs and will build from there for teachers. Other staff and governors
will also receive regular training and development and this will be of such high quality that it will be offered to
schools outside the Trust which will also benefit growth

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware;

there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
» that Trustees have taken all sleps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees' report was approved by order of the Board aof Trustees, as the company directors, on
and signed on its behalf by:;

YLD,

Mr J Morth
Chair of Trustees
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility 1o the CEQ, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the reguirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreesment between
inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are aiso responsible for
reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year. The
Board met less than 6 times due to an established committee of Trustees who deal with specific areas of
responsibility following robust terms of reference.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

John Morth, Chair 5
Simon Bartram (resigned 15 November 2023) 0
John Cripps 5
Charles Gray ]
Carolyn North b
Karen Partridge 5
Karen Rolinson 5
Graham Worsdale (resigned 12 April, 2024) 2
Jane Snowden 5
Rebecca Clayton 0
Robert Earl 0
Lorna Wright 0

ﬂﬂﬂﬂ‘liﬂlﬂ!‘-ﬁmmm—-m

Inspire Partnership Muiti Academy Trust manages conflicls of interest by requesting declarations of interesl
from all Trustees and SLT personnel at the beginning of the Academic year. Declaration of interests is also a
standing agenda item at each governance meeting and all members are fully aware of the requirement o be
transparent and open about any possible confiicts. Inspire Partnership Multi Academy Trust does not have
ownership or control of any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.

Key priority areas for the Board this year have included:

« the appointment of a new CEO;

« the further development of a growth sirategy, lgading to securing meaningful and relevant opportunities for
growth;

s highly effective continuous professional development for all supporting personal and professional growth;

« embed high calibre leadership at all levels in the Trust through in-house and external development
programmes, that are aligned with our wvision, values and guiding principles, and that continue to drive
improvement in standards and growth in the Trust;

« ensuring that our schools are highly inclusive and support the well-being of all pupils characterised by high
levels of pastoral support, positive behaviour, welfare, safety, security and attendance;

« ensuring the effective use of Trust resernves to deliver the Trust capital plan;

« ensuring that all schoaols are graded at least ‘Good' at OFSTED; and

« having a clear focus on ensuring the wellbeing of our staff is at the hearl of our Trust.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

1. The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its remit is:

1.
1

P
[ S

1.4

1.5

3,2

3.3
3.4

a5

3.6

a7

2.8

.10

Constitution

The Board of Trustees has resolved to establish g Finance, Audit and Risk Committee to advise
the Board on matters relating to the Trust's finance, audit and risk arrangements and systems of
internal control and to aid the Board's responsibility lo ensure sound management of the Trust's
finances and resources. including proper planning, mamnitoring and probity.

The Committee is responsible to the Board,

The Committee will review and challenge, where necessary, the actions and judgement of
management in relation to the Trust's financial statements and shall ensure compliance with
charity and company law and other legal requirements as necessary.

The Committee must report on any decisions taken in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation
and delegated powers. including the academies assets, depreciation and removal of such iterns
from the asset register,

The Committee's Terms of Reference are adopted by the Board and may only be amended with
the approval of the Board. They are in place to enable the Trust Board to deliver its responsibility
and accountabilities highlighted within the Articles of Association, Academy Trust Handbook and
the Trust Scheme of Delegation. In the event of uncertainty regarding these terms of reference, the
Scheme of Delegation shall take priefily, In the event of further uncertainty, the Articles shall take
priority.

Authorily

Duties

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee is authorised to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference or specifically delegated to it by the Board. It is authorised lo request any information it
requires from any governor, employee, external audit, internal audit or other assurance provider.,
The Committee is authorised to obtain any outside legal or independent professional advice it
considers necessary, normally in consultation with the Accounting Officer {the CEO) and/or Chair

of the Board,

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee is required to fulfil its responsibilities as set aut in these
Terms of Reference in line with the Academy Trust Handbook, the Trust's Financial Regulations
and in compliance with the Funding Agreement with the Secretary of State of Education.

The Committee advise the Board and Accounting Officer on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Trust's governance, risk management, internal contrel and value for money systems and
framewori,

Produce an annual report in respect of the above.

Advise the Board on the appointment, re-appointment, dismissal and remuneralion of the external
auditor,

Advise the Board on the need for and then, where appropriate, the appointment, re-appointment,
dismissal and remuneration of an internal auditor or other assurance provider.

Advise the Board on an appropriate programme of work to be delivered by independent assurance
providers. This programme of work should be derived from the Finance, Audit and Risk
Commitlee's regard of the key risks faced by the Trus, the assurance framework in place and its
duty to report to the Board, as detailed in point a abave,

Ensure thal where a full internal audit service is commissioned the service provider complies with
the standards set by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors. This will mean the internal audit
provider must conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Review the external auditor's annual planning document and approve the planned audit approach.
Receive reports (assignment reports, annual reports, management lefters etc) from the external
auditor, internal auditor and other bodies (for example the E SFA) and consider any issues raised,
the associated management response and action plans. Where deemed appropriate, reports
should be referred to the Board or other committee for information or action,

Regularly monitor outsta nding audit recommendations from whatever source and ensure any delay
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Governance (continued)

3.1
312
3.13
3.14

3.15

4,

4.2
4.3

4.4

4.7
4.8

410
411
412

b
5.1

52
53
54

55

5.6

to agreed implementation dates are reasonable.

Establish and monitor KP1s with regard to the performance of the external auditor, internal audit or
pther assurance provider.

Review the Trust's fraud response plan and ensure that all allegations of fraud or irregularity are
managed and investigated appropriately.

Consider any additional services delivered by the external auditor, internal auditor or other
assurance provider rovider and ensure appropriate independence is maintained,

Ensure appropriate eo-operation and co-ordination of the work of the external auditor and internal
auditor.

Meet with the external auditor and internat auditor or other assurance provider, without
management present, at least annually.

Finance

Subject to the detailed requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, Funding Agreement and the
Financial Regulations of the Trust, the Committee shall consider and advise the Trust Board on the
following specific matters.

The annual estimates of income and expenditure and financial forecast for the Trust and its
academies,

Monitoring of revenue finances of the Trust and its academies and advising the Trust Board on
progress o achieving its financial objectives.

Monitoring of policies relating to finance, staffing and buildings, including Health and Safety,
capitalisation, depreciation, reasury management, investment and borrowing.

The acquisition or disposal of land lo be used by the academies.

The financial elements of the Risk Management Policy including Health and Safety, buildings and
insurance,

The management accounts of the Trust, and to advise the Trust Board on the year-end accounts.
Strategic matters with financial implications concerning sponsorship of academies.

The Financial Regulations, lo be reviewed on an annual basis.

To consider any relevant legal and contractual documentation operating within the Articles of
Association, Scheme of Delegation, Funding Agreement and Financial Regulations.

To monitor policies in relation to non-educational services such as Human Resources, publicity
and marketing and to agree changes as necessary.

To monitor the deployment of non-financial resources, including personnel and property, with a
view to advising the Trust Board on the effectiveness of such resources.

Remuneralion

The Committee shall advise the Trust Board on the remuneration packages of the CEOQ, olher
senior officers and Headteachers and in doing 50 shall consider the following component
elements, ensuring all increases take account of the needs of the Trust budget.

i, basic salary.

fi. pension provisions.

i, the main terms and conditions of each individual's service agreement, with particular

referance to the notice provisions.

The Committee shall evaluate annually the specific remuneration package for the CEO, againsl
pre-gstablished performance goals and objectives.
The Committee shall receive a report from the CEO on the performance of the Headieachers
and for the recommendation on Headteacher pay.
The Committee shall receive a report from the Chair of the Board of Trustees on the
performance of the CEO.
The Committee will review and assess performance targets, goals and objectives established
before the commencement of the relevant period and determine whether such goals and
objectives have been achieved at the end of the relevant period.
The Committee shall advise the Trust Board of any compensation (including augmentation of
pension benefits) which may be payable in the event of early termination of the employment of
the CEO. Headteachers or any senior member of staff with the broad aim of avoiding rewarding
poor performance and dealing fairly with cases where early termination is not due to poor
performance.
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Governance (continued)

57

58

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6
6.7

6.8
6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6:13

B.14

6.15

The Committee shall routinely review and approve any changes to the job deseription of the CEO,
and ensure this happens whenever the configuration, make-up and membership of the Trust
changes.

The Committee shall hold oversight of the pay and conditions of service of all employees of the
Trusl

Administration

The Committes will meet at least once per term. The Chair or any two members may call an
additlonal meeting.

The Committee will consist of a minimum of three members of the Board. Members of the
Committee are appointed annually, At least one member of the Committee should have financial
experience, The Chair of the Board may be an ex officio member of the Committee.

Additionally, local governing board members (one from each school with & maximum of four at this
time) with particular expertise or interest will be appointed to the Committee by the Board of
Trustees. These members of the Commitiee will have full participation rights but no voting rights.
The Chair of the Board, even if not a member of the Commiltee, can attend the Resources & Audit
Commiltee but will only vote if 8 member of the Committee, The CEO should attend but will not
have voling rights discretion.

The Chair of the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee will be appointed by the Board and will not be
a member of any other commitlee. If the Chair is absent from a meeting, the members shall
choose another member, who is also a member of the Board, to act as Chair for that meeting.
Staff employed by the Trust should not be members of the Resources & Audit Committee.

The Committee will be quorate if two members are present (or at least one third if greater) of those
members eligible to vote are present. In addition, at least 50% of those members present are
required to be Board members.

The Chief Financial Officer should attend each meeting and other Trust officers may be invited to
attend. None will have voting rights.

Administrative suppor! will be provided by the Clerk to the Board/Governing Body or his/her deputy.
The agenda for meetings will be agreed in advance by the Chair of the Resources & Audit
Committee based on, but not limited to, a pre-agreed annual schedule of activity) and papers will
be circulated to members and attendees at least 5 working days in advance of the meeting.
Minutes of meetings will be taken and will be submitted in the next scheduled meeting of the
Board once approved in draft by the Chair of the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee.

Decisions made at meetings of the Committee shall be determined by a majority of votes of eligible
members present and voting. Where there is an equal division of votes the Chair shall have a
second or casling vote.

The Resources & Audit Committee will self-assess its performance against these Terms of
Reference on an annual basis and will also review the Terms of Reference, submitting any
proposed changes to the Board for approval,

The members of the Committee shall hold office from the date of their appointment until their
resignation their omission from membership of the Committee on subsequent consideration by the
Board (whichever will happen first).

The Board must not add to these Terms of Reference responsibilities that require the Audit
Committee to adopt an executive role, or its members to offer professional advice to the Board.
Finance, Audit and Risk Committee should seek formal professional opinions from the internal
audit service, financial statements auditor or other professional advisers to the Board. Advice
should be given in Committee members' capacity as Directors and co-optees and only within their
terms reference.

Key priority areas of focus have been:

« Refine the financial forecast and management account reporting to facilitate timely and effective decision

making; and
= Devise and oversee a robust aged, internal audit program to ensure that risks to the organisation were
being effectively managed,
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Altendance during the year al meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Charles Gray 3 3
John North 3 3
John Cripps 2 3
Karen Partridge 3 3
Jane Snowden 3 3

o

The Standards and Curriculum Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its remit is

1 Constitution

11 The Inspire Partnership Academy Trust Board has resolved to establish a Standards &
Curriculum Committee to advise the Board on matters relating to the Trust's curriculum,
quality and standards.

1.2 The Committee is responsible to the Trust Board.

1.3 The Committee's Terms of Reference are adopted by the Board and may enly be amended
with the approval of the Board.

2 Authority

21 The Committes is authorised to investigate any activily within its terms of reference or
specifically delegated to it by the Board. It is authorised to request any information it requires
from any employee of the Trust and all employees are directed to co-operate with any
request made by the
Cammittee.

2.2 The Committee is authorised lo obtain any outside legal or independent professional advice it
considers necessary.

3 Main Duties

3 To monitor and advise the Trust Board by written report each term on the following:

3.4 Data on attainment and achievement for all of the Trust's academies;

3.2 School improvement work and leadership;

313 Overall performance of each of the academies;

314 Leadership standards; and

1.8 Governance effectiveness,

3.2 To monitor and advise the Board on:

321 Special Educational Needs (SEN) and inclusion;

3.2.2 Partnership working,

323 Admission;

3.24 Safeguarding arrangements; and

3.2 Community engagement.

4 Detailed Responsibilities

In the

Board,

4.1
411

41.2
4.1.3
414
4.2

4.21

context of the Inspire Partnership Trust's Mission Statement determined by the Membersand the
the Committee shall consider and advise the Board on the malters outlined in sections 4.1 & 4.2,
Curriculum and Quality;

The Academies' statutory requirements in refation to the curriculum offer and other curriculum
issues such as spiritual, moral. social and cultural learning:

Extra-curricular activities;

The educational needs of the pupils attending the Trust's academies; and

To determine and update relevant strategies relating to the above.

Performance and Standards:

To monitor and review the achievement of strategic objectives, in particular the overview of
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Governance (continued)

performance against guantitative and qualitative benchmarks for key indicators/outcomes and the
Ofsted framework, providing challenge and recommending remedial actions where required in line
with the Academy Development Plan.

4.3 Self-Assessment and Review:
4.3 To receive information on curriculum and quality issues for all the Trust's academies;
432 To receive progress reports on the implementation of post-Ofsted action plans and any other

formal evaluation reports related to the quality and achievement of learning across the Trust, to
further inform and develop the Trust's Quality Improvement Plans and strategies; and

433 To review outcomes. identifying significant changes in performance, emerging trends and risks in
relation to the future performance of each Academy.,

5 Administration

5.1 The Standards & Curriculum Committee will meet at least once per term. The Committee's Chair
or any two Committee members may call a meeting.

52 The Committee will consist of a minimum of three members of the Board. Members of the
Committee are appointed annually. The Chair of the Board may be an ex officio member of the
Committee.

53 Additionally, local governing board members (one from each school with four maximum at this

time) with particular expertise or interest will be appeinted to the Commitlee by the Board of
Trustees. These members of the Committee will have full participation rights but na voting rights.

54 The CEO will be an ex officio member of the Standards Committee.
5.5 Other employees of the Trust's may be invited to attend meetings but will have no voting rights.
56 The Chair of the Standards & Curriculum Committee will be appointed by and from the Board

annually. The CEO or Head Teacher of an Academy may not act as Chair of the Commitlee. Any
other employees of the Trust may also not act as Chair, other than in exceptlional circumslances
agreed by the Board. If the Chair is absent from a meeting the Board shall choose another Board
member to act as Chair for that meeting,

W § The Standards & Curriculum Committee will be quorate if at least three members (or at least one
third if greater) of those members eligible to vote are present.
58 Decisions to be made at mesetings of the Committee shall be determined by a majority of the votes

of members present and voting. Where there is an equal division of voles, the Chair shall have a
second or casting vote.

5.9 Administrative support will be provided by the Clerk to the Board.

5.10 Agendas will be agreed in advance by the Chair of the Standards & Curriculum Commitiee (based
on, but not limited 1o, a pre-agreed annual schedule of activity) and papers will be circulated to
members and attendees at least 5 working days in advance of the meeting.

3.11 Minutes of meetings will be taken and submitted to the next scheduled meeting of the Board once
approved in draft by the Chair of the Committee,

5.12 The Standards & Curriculum Committee will self-assess its performance against these Terms of

Reference on an annual basis and will also review the Terms of Reference, submitting any
proposed changes to the Board for approval,

5.13 The members of the Committee shall hold office from the date of their appointment until their
resignation or their omission from membership of the Committee on subsequent consideration by
the Board (whichever shall happen first).

Key priority areas of focus for the Curriculum and Standards Commitiee have been:

» monitoring SEND and Pupil Premium across the Trust's Academies

s oversight of the implementation of new curriculum model, including presentations from subject leaders on
Geography and PE

s monitoring progress towards the Academies' strategic development plan priorities
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Altendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustea Meetings attended Out of a possible
Graham Worsdale, Chair (resigned 12 April 2 2

2024)

John Marth 3 |

Carolyn North 3 3

Karen Rollinson 3 3

Jan Morth {Governor at Gawthorpe appointed by 2 2

commiltee) (resigned 01 July 2024)
Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources, The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received,

The accounting officer considers how the academy's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved.
Including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate,

The accounting officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

reviewing benchmarking data for similar schools;

undertaking an Integrated Curriculum and Financial Planning Review (ICFP);

making use of the Schools Resource Management tools:

having a detailed assel management plan which is overseen by the central team:

cantralising several contracts and taking advantage of govermment frameworks:

actioning the recommendations of the SRIMA, review

actioning the recommendations of the internal audit reviews: and

identifying opportunities for internal growth and income generation strategies across the Trust.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically, The system of internal control has been in place in Inspire Partnership Multi-Acaderny Trust
for the year 1 Seplember 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements,
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The purpose of the system of internal control (continued)

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees Is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy's
significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 Seplember 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Commitiee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expendilure
programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees considered the need for a specific internal audit function and decided o appoint TIAA as
internal auditor for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024,

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of
checks on the academy's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

» testing creditor payments
+ testing of risk management and mitigating controls
s review of previous recommendations.

On a regular basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the Finance, Audit and Risk
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees financial
responsibilities and annually prepares a short annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the commiltee consider actions and assess
yEar on year progress.

The auditors have delivered their schedule of work as planned.
No instances of a material failure in any area were identified, A small number of areas for potential failure were
highlighted and the Senior Management Team have responded with their proposals to address (hese concems.

Generally, the internal audit work confirmed the satisfactory application of systems and controls in the areas
reviewed based on the sample tesling undertaken,
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(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor;

the work of the external auditors:

the school resource management self-assessment tool:

the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework;

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee,

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance committee and a plan lo address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is in place:

Conclusion

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on and signed
an their behalf by:

D, o

Mr J Morth M Knox

Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify
the academy trust board of trustees and the Educalion and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety
and management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding
under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

| onfirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

A '-:'i:}r
M Knox
Accounting Officer

Date;
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdem Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,

including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Truslees are
required fo:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024,
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,;
state whether applicable UK. Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charilable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2008. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
inciuded on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on

and signed on its behall by

Mr. J North
Chair of Trusleaes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust (the "academy trust’) for
the year ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the
Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies, The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding

Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the stale of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of ils
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20068, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are deseribed in the
relevant sections of this repart.
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course
of the audit, or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to delermine whether this gives rise to a material
misstaternent in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report for the financial year for which the financial statemenis are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements,
s the Trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you If, in aur opinion;

. adequate accounting records have not been kepl, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have nol received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees’ responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trusl for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
slatements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Truslees delermine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend lo liguidate the academy trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. Our audit must be alert to the risk of manipulation of the financial stalements and
seek to understand the incentives and opportunities for management to achieve this.

We undertake the following procedures to identify and respond to these risks of non-compliance:

s Understanding the key legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the academy trust. We
communicated identified laws and regulations throughout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications of noncompliance throughout the audit. We determined the most significant of these to be the
regulations set cut by the DFE/ESFA. Our audit focuses on financial malters as set out in our regularity
opinion. Other key laws and regulations included safeguarding, Heallh & Safety, GDPR and employment
law

« Enquiry of trustees and management as to policies and procedures to ensure compliance and any known
instances of non-compliance
Review of board minutes and correspondence with regulators
Enquiry of trustees and management as to areas of the financial statements susceptible to fraud and how
these risks are managed

« Challenging management on key estimates, assumptions and judgements made in the preparation of the
financial statements. These key areas of uncertainty are disclosed in the accounting policies

 Identifying and testing unusual journal entries, with a particular focus on manual journal entries.

Through these procedures, we did not become aware of actual or suspected non-compliance.

We planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards but owing to the inherent limitations
of procedures required in these areas, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected a material
misstatement in the accounts. The further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve concealment, collusion, forgery, misrepresentations, or override of internal
controls. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-
compliance with all laws and regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: w.frc.org.uk/auditorsres ibilities, This description forms part of our
Auditors' report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Parl 18
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might slate lo the Academy Trust's
members those malters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Ol Ou Wl

Christopher Beaumont BA{Hons) FCA BFP DChA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Clive Owen LLP

Charlered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

140 Coniscliffe Road

Darlington

County Durham

DL3 7RT

Date: |7) iEECﬂ i‘”- D=1
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO INSPIRE
PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 16 September 2022 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024, we have carried out an engagement to oblain limited assurance about whether the
expenditure disbursed and income received by Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust during the year 1
September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state lo Inspire Partnership Multi-
Academy Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Inspire
Partnership Multi-Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust's accounting officer and
the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust's
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 29 April 2014 and the Academy Trust
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO INSPIRE
PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
(CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence o express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Qur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

Review of governing body and commitlee minutes;

Review of termly Internal Assurance reports;

Completion of self assessment questionnaire by Accounting Officer;

Review documentation provided to Directors and Accounting Officer setting out responsitilities:
Obtain formal letters of representation detailing the responsibilities of Directors:
Review of payroll, purchases and expenses claims on a sample basis;
Confirmation that the lines of delegation and limits set have been adhered to:
Evaluation of internal contrel procedures and reporting lines:

Review cash payments for unusual transactions;

Review of credit card transactions;

Review of registers of interests;

Review related party transactions;

Review of borrowing agreements;

Review of land and building transactions;

Review of potential and actual bad debts:

Review an instance of gifts/ospitality to ensure in line with policy:

Review whistleblowing procedures;

Review pay policy and factors determining executive pay;

Review of stail expenses;

Review other income to ensure is in line with funding agreement;

* Review governance structure and number of meelings held; and

= Review whether there is a risk regisier in place.
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PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
(CONTINUED)

Coneclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Cha O ol
vl

Clive Owen LLP

Reporting accountant

140 Coniscliffe Road
Darlington

County Durham

DL3 TRT

020 ) Desewper 2o
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants

Other trading aclivities
Investments
Charitable activities

Total income

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities

Total expenditure

Net
income/{expenditure)

Transfers between funds

Net movement in funds
before other
recognised
gains/{losses)

Other recognised
gains/(losses);

Actuarial (losses)gains
on defined benefit
pansion schames

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried
forward

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 42 to 71 form part of these financial statements,
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Mote £000 EQ00 £000 £000 £000
3 6 - 717 723 690
333 - - 333 401
8 20 33 - 53 -
116 13,789 - 13.905 12,927
475 13,822 77 15,014 14.018
6 - - 5] 18
156 13,804 624 14 674 14,064
162 13,894 624 14,680 14,082
313 (72) 93 334 (64)
18 - (478) 476 - -
3 {548) 569 334 (64)
28 - (74) - (74) 1,499
313 (622) 569 260 1,435
e — ] ————
1,185 693 18,872 20,730 18,285
213 (622) HE9 260 1,435
1,478 71 19,441 20,990 20,7320
—_— E —_— —_—



INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07805262

Fixed assets
Tangible assels

Current assets

Debtors
Investments
Cash at bank and in‘hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within ane
year

Met current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets excluding pension asset

Total net assets

14

16

17

Mote
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BALAMCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

2024

£000

19,439

19,439
1,067
1,512
788
3,367

(1,356)
2,011
21,450
(460)

20,990

20,990

——

2023
E000

19,181

19,181

ar3

2,430
3,403
(1,411)
1,992

e

21,173

(443)

20,730

20,730

————



INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07805262

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

2024 2023
Mote EODO E£000
Funds of the academy
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 18 19,441 18,872
Restricled income funds 18 T 693
Total restricted funds 18 19,512 19,565
Unrestricted income funds 18 1,478 1,165
Total funds 20,990 20,730
————

The financial staterments on pages 38to 71 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on
and are signed on their behalf, by:

John Narth
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 42 o 71 form part of these financial statements.
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(A ecompany limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Nat cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year
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MNote

20

21

23, 24

2024 2023
£000 £000
11 267
(165) (836)
24 .
(130) (569)
2,430 2,999
2,300 2,430



INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting policies

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charilies: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 20086,

Inspire Partnership Multi-Academy Trust meets the definilion of a public benefit entity under FRS
102,

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
malerial uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the academy trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial slatements and
have concluded thal the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements,
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipl is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

« Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance shest. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entittement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

« Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

« Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

1.5

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation lo transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including supporl costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs atiributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not atiributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
aclivities en a basis consistent with the use of rescurces. Central staffl cosls are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educalional operations, including support costs
and costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet al cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related granls are credited to a restricted
fixed assel fund in the Statement of financial activiies and carried forward in the Balance sheet,
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, al rates calculated to write off the cost of each assel over its expected useful ife, as
follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold land - Not depreciated

Freehold and Leasehold - Dver remainder of useful life (between 28 and
buildings 100 years)

Leasahold land - Over 125 years

Furniture and equipment - Over 10 years

Computer equipment = Over 3 years

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assels is not
charged until they are brought into use. The Academy Trust currently has six schools whose
premises are held under 125 year leases with Wakefield Council.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities,
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there iz an obligation at the Balance shee! date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the
amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the
academy trust anticipates it will pay to setlle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Taxation

The Academny Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporalion tax

purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, o the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Pensions Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contribulions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers, Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trusiee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retumn on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements
and curtailments, They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit abligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used o
discount the benefit cbligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assels
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Fund accounting

Unrestricled income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Academy Trust al the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/doner and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund,

1.11 Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement bases are as follows;

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amorlised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - lrade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
sarvices rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical acecounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related aclual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment lo the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of faclors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variely of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2024, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuanal valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Page 46



INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment (continued)

The original Local Government Pension scheme valuation showed an assel of £1,664,000. That assel
valuation is highly dependent on a number of assumptions and does not represent the future value of
benefits to the trust. As a result, the Trustees have considered the potential benefits to the trust. On the
basis that the future value of employer contributions in respect of future service cost (£675,000) exceed
the employer future service costs (£727,000) combined with the fact that the last Local Government
Scheme acluarial réview set the contribution rates from 1 April 2024 and that these will not be revised
until April 2026 the Trustees have decided to include the pension asset at ENIL.

Depreciation — Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its residual value,
over the economic life of that asset. An estimate of the useful life of assets is detailed in the depreciation
accounting policy. The value of depreciation charge during the year was £624,000.

Critical areas of judgment;

Land — Land is held under a 125 year lease from Wakefield Council, These assets are included on the
balance sheet of the academy due to the significant risks and rewards of ownership belonging to the
academy, the lease term being the major part of the economic life of the assels and the assets being of
such a specialised nature that only the academy could use them without major modification,
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Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted  fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
E000 £000 £000 £000
Donations 6 - 6 B
Capital Grants - 717 717 684
8 7 723 B30
Total 2023 6 684 690
—_—————— _——
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Funding for the academy's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Toial Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 E000 £000
Academy’s educational operations
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grani (GAG) - 10,154 10,154 §,461
Other DfEESFA grants
Pupil Premium - 8186 816 754
PE and Sport Premium - 162 162 161
UIFSM - 204 294 278
Teachers' pay grant - 179 179 8
Teachers' pension grant - 92 92 24
Other DfE Group grants - a4 84 106
Supplementary granl - - - 283
Mainstream grant - 343 343 143
- 12,124 12,124 11,216
Other Government grants
SEN - 373 373 324
Early Years Funding - 1,086 1,086 1,070
Local Authority granis - 43 43 101
Other Government granis - 15 15 g9
- 1,517 1.517 1.504
Other income from the academy trust's
academy's educational operations 116 73 189 130
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Other DIE/ESFA COVID-18 funding - 75 75 7
- 75 75 (4
116 13,789 13,905 12,927
118 13,788 13,805 12,927
—— — —_—
Total 2023 81 12,846 12,927
—_———— e
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Other trading activities

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000
Income from facilities and services 33 33 36
Receipts from Supply Teacher Insurance claims 26 26 75
Other 274 274 259
Trading Income - - 3
333 333 401
Total 2023 401 401
——a—————
Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment income 20 - 20 -
Pension income - 33 a3 -

20 33 53 -
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Expenditure
Staff Costs Pramises Cther Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure on fundraising
trading activities:
Direct cosls - = il 6 18
Academy's educational
operations:
Direct costs 9,383 - 1,075 10.458 9812
Allocated support costs 2,006 1,068 1,082 4,216 4,252
11,479 1,068 2,133 14,680 14,082
f-————— —_— —_—
Total 2023 10,957 1,361 1,764 14,082
—_— e e

In 2024, of the total expenditure, £162,000 (2023- £63,000) was to unrestricted funds, £13,894,000
(2023- £13,395,000) was to restricted funds and £624,000 (2022: £624,000) restricted fixed asset funds.

There were no individual transactions exceeding £5,000 for:
Compensation payments

Gifls made by the academy trust

Fixed asset losses

Stock losses

Unrecoverable debts

Cash losses

There were Enil (2023: Enil) ex-gratia paymenls in the year,
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Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities

undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
Academy's educational operalions 10,458 4216 14,674 14,064

Tatal 2023 9,812 4 252 14,064

S ———— L -

Analysis of direct costs

Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023
E000 £000
Staff costs 9,383 8,881
Educational supplies 457 438
Staff development 75 a7
Technology costs 302 254
Educational consultancy 94 83
Supply insurance 54 54
Transport 27 2
Other costs 36 34
10,458 9812
—_—
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance costs
Staff costs
Depreciation

Staff developmant
Technology costs

Staff expenses
Transport

Maintenance of premises
Cleaning

Other premises cosls
Energy

Rent and rates
Insurance

Operating lease rentals
Catering

Legal costs - other
Other cosls
Governance costs

Net incomel/(expenditure)

Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assels
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit

- other services
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Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023
£000 £000
- ar
2,086 2076
624 624

4 2

41 21

i1 12

41 24
151 152
a3 30
26 24
312 452
62 33

52 46

27 1]
492 458

2 1

155 148
87 57
4,216 4252
—eee—————— e
2024 2023
£000 £000
61 43
624 624
23 21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 8,589 7,954
Social security costs 819 738
Pension costs 1,837 1,901
11,245 10,593

Supply staff costs 197 327
Staff restructuring costs 37 37
11,479 10,957

Included in pension costs is a charge of £41,000 (2023: £241,000) relating to the pension deficit actuarial

adjustment.

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

2024 2023

£000 £000

Severance payments 37 37
37 37

b. Severance payments

The academy trust paid 2 severance payments in the year (2023 - 2), disclosed in the following bands:

2024

No.

£0 - £25,000 1
£25,001 - £50,000 1

2023
No.

1
1
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Staff (continued)
c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

No. No.

Teachers 106 107
Administration and support 241 327
Management 12 12
359 446

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2024 2023

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 6 9
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 5 2
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 - 1
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 2 1
In the band £120,000 - £130,000* 2 1

*Due to the change of accounting officer during the year, the salary reflects full time.

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer

pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the academy trust was £1,185,000 (2023 - £1,307,000).
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Central services
The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Human resources
Administrative support
Educational support services
Legal services

Procurement

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:
The trust charges for all these services on the basis of a flal percentage of income (7% of GAG).

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

ED0O EDDO
Gawthorpe Community Academy 69 64
Towngate Primary Schoal 79 7
Ackton Pastures Primary Academy a9 85
Half Acres Primary Academy 117 104
Fitzwilliam Primary School 73 69
Girnhill Infant School 51 47
South Hiendley Primary Schoaol 65 59
Ash Grove Primary School 89 86
Grove Lea Primary School 69 65
Total 71 662

Trustees' remuneration and expenses
During the year, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2023 - ENIL).

During the year ended 31 August 2024 expenses of ENIL (2023 - Enil) were reimbursed or paid directly to
trustees in the course of their work.

Other related parly transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 27,

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative o insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
Al 1 September 2023
Additions

Transfers between classes

At 31 August 2024

Depreciation
Al 1 Beptember 2023
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2024

Net book valus

At 31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

Debtors

Due within one year
Trade deblors

Prepayments and acerued income

VAT recoverable
Cther debtors

Assets  Freehold Leasehold Furniture
under Land and Land and and Computer

construction  Buildings Buildings equipment equipment Total
EDOD £000 £000 E0DD £000 E000

248 4,937 15,256 625 889 22055

547 5 104 109 117 882

(553) 291 262 ke

242 5233 15,622 734 1,106 22,837

- 734 1151 319 670 2,874

- 103 285 65 191 624

. 8ar 1,416 384 BE1 3498

242 4,396 14,208 350 245 19,439
_ _ _—— _—— —_— _—_—
248 4,203 14,105 06 319 19,181
_—— _ S ——— 1 _ _—— e
2024 2023
£000 EQOO0

15 37

906 858

145 ]

1 2

1,067 973

%: _—
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Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2024 2023

£000 £000

Other loans 70 B1
Trade creditors an 270
Other taxation and social security 172 161
Other creditors 219 189
Accruals and deferred income 584 730
1,356 1,411

##

2024 2023

£000 E0O0

Deferred income at 1 September 2023 262 237
Resources deferred during the year 285 262
Amounts released from previous periods (262) (237}
285 262

— —_—
Deferred income at the year end includes Universal Infant Free School meal funding received in advance,

CIF funding in excess of total expenditure and other income received in advance of the 2024-25
academic year,

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2024 2023
£000 £000
Other loans 460 443

#1#:

Other loans include loans totalling £530,000 (2023; £504,000) from Salix Finance Lid and CIF loans from
the ESFA. Loans have been provided on the following terms:

Salix Finance Ltd loans totalling £50,000 (2023: £85,000) an interest free loan repayable through GAG
over a 8 year period paid bi-annually.

CIF loans of £471,000 (2023 £419,000) with an annual interest rate of 5% repayable through GAG over
a 10 year period, paid on a monthly basis.
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Statement of funds

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds

Restricted general
funds

General Annual
Grant (GAG)
Pupil Premium

Other DIE/ESFA
grants

COVID-19 funding
SEN

Other government
granis

Pension resarve

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Assels Inherited on
conversion

DFE/ESFA capital
granis

Donationg

Capital expenditure
from GAG

Total Restricted
funds

Total funds

INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income  Expenditure infout {Losses) 2024
£000 £000 £000 E0OD EDOQ E0DD
1,165 475 {162) - - 1,478
693 10,154 (10,300) (478) 71
= 816 (818) - - -
1,153 {1,153) - - =
- 75 {75) - = -
. 373 {373) - = .
1,218 (1.218) - - -
- 33 41 - (74) -
693 13,822 (13.894) (478) (74} 71
13,875 - {271) - - 13,704
4,239 688 (216) - 4711
126 29 (29) - 126
532 - {108) 476 - 800
18,872 ik i (624) 476 - 19,441
19,565 14,539 (14,518) - (74) 18,512
20,730 15,014 (14,680) - (74) 20,990

%%%&
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running of the academy including salaries
and related costs, overheads, repairs and maintenance, and insurance,

Pupil Premium is additional funding to be spent as the school sees fit to support deprived students.

Universal Infant Free School Meals (included within Other DIE/ESFA Grants) is funding to provide a free
school lunch to all pupils in reception, year 1 and year 2.

Other DIE/ESFA Grants also includes the PE and sport premium grant, rates relief, teachers’ pay grant
and teachers’ pension grant, recovery pramium.

Other Government grants include Early Years funding for three and four year old children, funding for
pupils with Special Educational Needs and other income from the local authority.

The pension reserves is the liabllity due to the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme. Further
details are shown in note 25.

The restricted fixed asset funds represent monies raceived to purchase fixed assets. Depreciation |3
charged against each fund over the useful economic jife of the associated assels.

Unrestricted funds include the income from uniform sales, school trips and catering with the relevant
costs allocated accordingly.

A transfer of £476,000 has been made to capital expenditure from GAG to reflect those items included
within fixed assets which have been purchased using GAG monies.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2024.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows!

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income  Expenditure infout {Logses) 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 740 488 (63) » 1,165
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 1,199 9,461 (9.732) (235) - B33
Pupil Premium - 754 (754) - - -
Other
DIE/ESFA
grants - 1,001 {1,001) - -
Other income - 49 (49) - -
SEN - 324 (324) - = s
Other
government
grants - 1,257 (1.257) - - -
Pension
reserve (1.221) - (278) - 1,498 -
{22) 12,846 (13,395) {235) 1,499 6493
Restricted
fixed asset
funds
Unrestricted 1 - = 1
Assets inherited
on conversion 13,974 - - - 13,974
DfE/ESFA
capital grants 3,958 670 (624) 235 4,239
Donations 112 14 - - 126
Capital
expenditure
from GAG 532 . - & = 532
18577 684 (624) 235 = 18,872
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Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2023
£000 EQDOD £000 £000 £000 £000
Total

Restricted
funds 18,555 13,530 (14,019) . 1,499 18,565
Total funds 19,295 14,018 (14,082) r 1,499 20,730

===-===

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

Gawthorpe Community Academy
Towngale Primary School

Acklon Pastures Primary Academy
Half Acres Primary Academy
Fitzwilliam Primary School

Gimnhill Infant School

South Hiendley

Ash Grove

Central services

Grove Lea

Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve
Restricted fixed assat fund

Total
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2024 2023

E0DO E0QD

141 116

240 339

37 210

297 224

145 194

171 236

70 75

56 1

68 227

47 26

1,580 1,858

19,441 18,872

20,991 20,730
T —



INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Statement of funds {continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support staff  support staff Educational excluding Total Total

costs costs supplies  depreciation 2024 2023

£000 £000 £000 E000 £000 £000
Gawthorpe
Community
Academy B47 168 59 178 1.253 1,291
Towngate
F’rimar}-' School 1.011 213 51 242 1.517 1,528
Ackton Pastures
Primary
Acadermny 1,242 174 80 250 1,746 1,808
Half Acras
Primary
Academy 1,443 169 61 208 1.971 2,008
Fitzwilliam
Frimary School Ba7 160 44 199 1,300 1,258
Girnhill Infant
School 666 78 47 163 955 1,048
South Hiendley 760 136 28 179 1,103 1,194
Ash Grove 1,154 168 62 244 1.628 1,708
Grove Lea 968 157 35 194 1,354 1.276
Central Services 388 694 20 146 1,228 341
Academy trust 9,358 2,118 487 2,094 14,055 13,458
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current period

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed assel Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024
000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assels - - 19,438 18,439
Current assels 1,478 1,211 678 3.367
Creditors due within one year - (1.140) {218) (1,356)
Creditors due in more than one year - - {460) (480}
Total 1,478 71 19,441 20,980

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed assetl Total

fungs funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2023

£000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assels - - 18181 19,181
Current assels 1,165 1,838 400 3,403
Creditors due within one year - {1,145) (266) {1.411)
Creditors due in more than one year - - (443) (443)
1,165 693 18,872 20,730

Total
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INSPIRE PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Reconciliation of net innome!{uxpanditure} to net cash flow from operating activities

Met Income/{expenditure) for the peried (as per Statement of financial

aclivities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Defined benefit pension scheme cost lees contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance income
Decrease/(increase) in debtors

Decrease in creditgrs

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash inflows from new barrowing
Repayments of borrowing

Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assels
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Page 65

2024 2023
EQDO £000
334 (64)
624 624
(7T17) (684)
(41) 241
(31) 37
(94) 115
(64) (2)
11 267
_— _——
2024 2023
£000 £000
83 -
(69) -
24 -
_— _—
2024 2023
E0DO ED00
(882) (1,766)
7T 930
(165) (836)
_—— _
2024 2023
E000 EDDOD
2,300 2430
2,300 2,430
_— _
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Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 Other non-
September eash At 31 Augusl
2023 Cash flows changes 2024
£000 E000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 2430 (130) (1,512) 788
Debt due within 1 year (B1) (9) - (70)
Debt due after 1 year (443} {17) : (480)
1,928 {156) (1.512) 258

Capital commitments

2024 2023
EDOO £000
Contracted for, but not provided in these financial statements 578 306

Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by the City of Bradford Metropolitan District
Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related io the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2022.

There were no outstanding of prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial
year,

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a stalutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme 1o which both the member and employer makes eontributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited 1o {he Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, eonducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are
recegnised and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.,

SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CP|.
The key elements of the valuation outeome are:

- employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable Pay (including & 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% In employer contributions and the cost control,

. lolal scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assels (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222 200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £33,800 million

The next valuation results is due to be implemented from 1 April 2028,

The pension costs paid to TPS in the periad amounted to £1,170,000 (2023 - £1 025,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust is unable 1o identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.
Accordingly, the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for

its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out
above the information available on the scheme.
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Pension commitments (continued)

Local Government pPension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy, who were the
employeas transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The gbligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
academy al the balance sheet date.

The LGPS is a funded defined benafit pension scheme, with the assels held in separale trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £933,000 (2023
. £834,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £702,000 (2023 - £629,000) and employees’
contributions totalled £231,000 (2023 - £205,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 12.3
9;, for employers and 5.5% and 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee thal, in the
gvent of academy closure, outstanding Local Government pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed iis commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute
published on GOV.UK.

The original Local Government Pension scheme valuation showed an asset of £1,654,000. That assel
valuation is highly dependent on a number of assumplions and does not represent the future value of
benefits to the trust. As a result, the Trustees have considered the potential benefits 1o the trust. On the
basis that the future value of employer contributions in respect of future service cost (£727,000) exceed
the employer future service coste (F675,000) combined with the fact that the last Local Government
Scheme actuarial review set the contribution rates from 1 April 2023 and that these will not be revised
until April 2026 the Trustees have decided to include the pension assel at ENIL.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2024 2023

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 375 3.85
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinflation 250 2.60
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.90 5.00
inflation assumption (CP1) 2.50 2.60

—_——————

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
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Pension commitments (continued)

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.19%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0,1%

CPl rate -0.1%

Share of scheme assets

The academy trust's share of the assels in the schemae was:

Equity instruments
Bonds

Property
Cash
Other

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assels was £1,678,000 (2023 - £54,300).

Page 62

2024 2023
Years Years
20.8 210
240 24.1
21.7 222
24.7 251
_—_— _—
2024 2023
£000 E000
(312) (293)
az7 307
37 349
(371) (349)
282 265
(267) {251)
=== ===
Al 31 August At 31 Augusl
2024 2023
£000 EDDOD
13,084 11,438
2,112 1,700
446 471
446 557
413 114
16,501 14,280
—_—— —_—
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Pension commitments (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

2024 2023
E00O £000
Current service cost (661) (870}
Met interest cost 728 545
Interest cost (BE5) (582)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities (628) {907)
—_— —_———
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2024 2023
£000 £000
At 1 September 13,966 14,065
Current service cost 661 870
Interest cost 695 582
Employee contributions 231 205
Actuarial gains {316) (1.815)
Benefits paid {380) 59
At 31 August 14,847 13,966
—_—— —_—
Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2024 2023
EODO £000
At 1 September 13,966 12,844
Interest Income 728 545
Actuarial gains/(losses) a50 (2)
Employer contributions TO2 629
Employee contributions 231 205
Benefits paid (390) 59
Asset ceiling restriction (1,340) (314)
At 31 August 14,847 13,966
—_— —_—
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Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the academy trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2024 2023

EODO EQO0

Amounis due within one year 43 52
Amounts due between one and five years 51 683
94 115

======

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academ y trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may lake place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest, All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy frust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to eonnected and related party
transactions. There was no related party transactions in the financial period,

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes lo contribute to the assels of the company in the
event of it being wound up while ha/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding ENIL for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member,

Current asset investments

2024 2023
E000 E000
Investments in participating undertakings 1.512
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